Putting the Community First B|A|R|N]E|T]

LONDON BOROUGH

MEETING

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP SUB-COMMITTEE
DATE AND TIME

WEDNESDAY 23RD MAY, 2018
AT 7.00 PM

VENUE

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ

TO: MEMBERS OF COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP SUB-COMMITTEE (Quorum 3)

Membership to be confirmed

In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit
public questions or comments must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before
the date of the committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is at Friday 18t
May at 10AM. Requests must be submitted to Abigail Lewis 020 8359 4369
abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk

You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached.
Andrew Charlwood — Head of Governance

Governance Service contact: Abigail Lewis 020 8359 4369 abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039

ASSURANCE GROUP



ORDER OF BUSINESS

Item No Title of Report Pages
1. Community Right to Bid: Incognito Theatre, Holly Park Road, N11 | 3 - 14
3HB
2. Community Right to Bid: Northwest Centre, Avion Crescent, NW9 | 15 - 26
5QY
3. To Follow: Ground Floor of Stag House and adjoining car park, 94

Burnt Oak Broadway

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets. If you wish to let
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Abigail Lewis
020 8359 4369 abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk. People with hearing difficulties who have a text
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942. All of our Committee Rooms
also have induction loops.

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed
custodians. It is vital you follow their instructions.

You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts.

Do not stop to collect personal belongings

Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some
distance away and await further instructions.

Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.




Putting the Community First BEE

LONDON BOROUGH

AGENDA ITEM|1

Community Leadership Committee
(23 May 2018)

Community Right to Bid: Incognito
Theatre, Holly Park Road, N11 3HB

Katie Mayers, Interim Assistant Director Communications and
Strategy

Title

Report of

Wards | Coppetts

Status | Public

Yes

There is an 8-week statutory timescale to respond to
Community Right to Bid nominations, starting from the date
the Council receives the nomination.

The nomination for Incognito Theatre was received on 8t
April 2018, making the deadline for a decision 3 June 2018.

Urgent

Key | No

Enclosures | Plan of nominated asset

Danusia Brzezicka, Strategy Officer, Community Participation

Officer Contact Details | - \sia brzezicka@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 3211)

Summary

The Localism Act 2011 introduced the Community Right to Bid (“CRTB”). Under section 87
of the Act the Council must maintain a list of land of community value in its area. A building
or other land is of community value if in the Council’s opinion there is an actual current use
of the building or other land, and it is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-
ancillary use of the building or other land which will further (whether or not in the same
way) the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community.

This a new right for local people to nominate buildings or pieces of land that they believe
contribute to the social interests or wellbeing of their local communities to be listed on a
register of Assets of Community Value (“ACVs”), managed by the local authority.

www.barnet.gov.uk



mailto:danusia.brzezicka@barnet.gov.uk

Where land is listed as an ACV, if the owner subsequently wishes to make a ‘relevant
disposal’ (to sell the asset or grant a qualifying lease, which is one originally granted for a 25
year term) they must notify the local authority. This triggers an interim moratorium period of
six weeks, during which time the nominating group, or any other community group can
register interest in putting together a bid for the asset. If a community group registers interest,
this triggers a full moratorium period of six months, during which time the owner may not
make a relevant disposal of the asset, except to a community group. The moratorium is
intended to allow community groups the time to develop a proposal and raise the required
capital to bid for the asset when it comes onto the open market at the end of that period. The
owner is under no obligation to accept a bid from a community group and can sell the property
to whomever they wish once the six month moratorium is over. However, if the asset is not
disposed of within 18 months from the commencement of the interim moratorium period, then
the moratorium period is re-triggered (12 months from the end date of the first moratorium
period).

In order to decide whether to list an asset as an ACV, the Act provides that the Council must
consider whether the nomination has come from a group eligible to make a nomination, as
defined in the legislation; and whether the current or recent main use of the nominated asset
contributes to the social wellbeing or social interests (defined as ‘cultural, recreational or
sporting interests’) of the local community, and whether it is realistic to think it will continue
to do so in the next 5 years (whether or not the use remains exactly the same).

A nomination has been received from Chris Mason on behalf of the group to list the Incognito
Theatre, Holly Park Road, N11 3HB (Coppetts ward) as an Asset of Community Value.
This report recommends that the asset is listed as an Asset of Community Value.

The nomination is an eligible nomination. The Localism Act 2011 and the Assets of
Community Value Regulations (“ACV Regulations”) provides that in order to be eligible, the
nomination must be made by a community organisation or group which qualifies under the
Act to make the nomination. The Incognito Theatre is an established registered charity, and
qualifies as a community group under regulation 5 (1) d of the ACV Regulations.

The nomination describes uses that further social interest, that their local members provide
maintenance work in the theatre, in the garden as well as the backstage work for the theatre.
The theatre also provides a "Monday Club" throughout year. Theatres exist to provide for the
recreational interests of the community, so it is reasonable to think that the main use of the
assets furthers the social wellbeing and social interests of the community. There are
currently no known plans to close the theatre, and the nomination states it is popular locally
and has regular local customers, suggesting continued viability and demand. It is realistic
to think that use of the asset will continue to contribute to the social wellbeing and
social interests of the community.

Evidence was requested to verify the above mentioned activities and this was provided by
the nominating group. The theatre’s website and social media presence also provided
evidence that regular performances were undertaken aimed at the local community and
performed at the theatre. Taken together, it was deemed that there is sufficient evidence to
meet the statutory requirements as the main use of the asset contributes to the social
interests or wellbeing of the local community.




Recommendations

That the Committee agree that the Incognito Theatre should be listed as an Asset of
Community Value and added to the Council’s Register, based on the statutory criteria
set out in the Localism Act 2011, and the evidence provided in the nomination.

1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED
The Community Right to Bid

1.1 The Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”) introduced a new right for groups of local
people to nominate buildings or pieces of land which contribute to the ‘social
wellbeing or social interests’ of their local communities to be listed on a register
of Assets of Community Value (“ACVs”), which the local authority is required to
maintain.

1.2  Nominations can apply to public or private assets, although certain kinds of
asset (such as private homes) are exempt.

1.3  The Act provides that in order to decide whether to list a nominated asset as an
ACV, the Council must consider whether the main use of the asset contributes
to the social interests or wellbeing of the local community, and whether it is
realistic to think it will continue to do this (whether or not the use remains exactly
the same).

1.4  The Act defines social interests as ‘including cultural, recreational, and sporting
interests’. There is no further definition.

1.5 The Act provides that land in a local authority's area which is of community
value may be included by a local authority in its register of ACVs only:

(a) in response to a community nomination, or
(b) where permitted by regulations made by the appropriate authority.

1.6 In England a community nomination can be made by a parish council or by a
voluntary or community body with a local connection as defined in the Assets
of Community Value Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”).

1.7  The statutory tests which the Council must apply when assessing a nomination
are:

(i) Its main use furthers the social wellbeing or cultural, recreational or sporting
interests of the local community; and it is realistic to think that the main use will
continue to further the social wellbeing or cultural, recreational or sporting
interests of the local community; or,




1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

(i) Where the main use does not currently have such a community benefit, in
the “recent past” it did have and the Council considers it likely that it would be
able to have such a use in the next 5 years.

(i) That the nomination is a community nomination made by a community or
voluntary organisation or group which qualifies under the Act to make the
nomination.

Where either criterion i) or ii), and criterion iii) of the above is met, the Council
must list the land or building on its register of Assets of Community Value.

If the Council lists the nominated land, a restriction is placed on the land if the
land is registered. If the owner wishes to sell the asset or to lease it for more
than 25 years, then the owner is legally obliged to notify the Council (if the asset
is not owned by the Council). The Council will then inform the nominating group
which signals an interim moratorium period of six weeks where the nominating
group or any other eligible community group may register an interest in bidding
for the asset. If during the six weeks a local community group expresses an
interest in taking on the asset and continuing its community use, then a full
moratorium is triggered and the sale is delayed for a six month period. This is
designed to give the community group the opportunity to raise funds to try to
purchase the asset at market value.

The owner is under no obligation to accept the community group’s bid over any
other bid. There is no ‘right of first refusal’ for the community group, only the
right to request the moratorium. The owner is free to work with other potential
buyers and stimulate the wider market during the moratorium and at the end of
the moratorium period can sell to any party. However, if the asset is not
disposed of within 18 months from the commencement of the interim
moratorium period, then the moratorium period is re-triggered (12 months from
the end date of the first moratorium period).

If an asset is listed as an ACV, the asset owner has the right to appeal against
this, initially through the Council’s internal review process and subsequently
through an appeal to the First Tier Tribunal.

If an asset is not listed, the Council must communicate its reasoning to the
nominating group but the nominating group has no right to appeal against the
decision.

Recent policy developments

The Government is currently reviewing the Right. The review is on-going and
there is no closing date as it is not a formal consultation. The Council has
contributed to the review as an interested party.

A Communities and Local Government Select Committee report published on
3 February 2015 recommended that the review of the Right should increase the
moratorium on sale or lease of an ACV to nine months, as well as creating
statutory obligations for ACV status to be considered as a material



1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

consideration in planning matters. These recommendations have not yet been
accepted by the Government but will feed into the review.

Nomination of Incognito Theatre

The Incognito Theatre Group, a registered charity has nominated the Incognito
Theatre, Holly Park Road, N11 3HB. The enclosed plan sets out the boundaries
of the nominated asset.

The Incognito Theatre is currently owned by Barnet Council and is leased to
the nominator. The landlord has been notified that this nomination is currently
under consideration.

The nominating group considers that the main current use of the building
furthers social wellbeing and interests of the community on the grounds that:

It is the social centre of the local community and is regarded as a hidden gem
bringing a splash of culture to Friern Barnet and the surrounding area.

It comprises a friendly, lively and active membership of about 130 members,
staging 6 productions of 8 performances each a year to approximately 3,000
local theatre goers.

The group has been going for 70 years in this building and has a good reserve
of talent and goodwill that is expected to grow.

The building and not diminish within it's well equipped 64 seat theatre. They are
committed to staying in the building and to continuing their activities with plans
to improve the access to the upper floors with a staircase based on modern
regulations and to improve facilities for performers that may have disabilities.
The group participates in the annual Barnet and District Drama

The Charity aims to make high quality live theatre accessible to local actors,
back-stage crew, technicians, directors, designers, writers and audiences and
so enrich their lives and benefit the community generally.

The productions are open to the public regardless of religion, ethnic group,
social status, political belief, gender or age.

The building provides theatrical entertainment to the local area and an outlet
for creative performing arts to those on or off stage. There are some members
with special needs and the theatre provides a form of therapy and company for
those who are bereaved or otherwise missing the world of work post retirement.
Tickets for the performances are sold at £9 for the general public and these are
discounted by a pound to theatre club members. The prices are priced to be
reasonable and deliberately affordable.

There are no known plans to close the theatre.

Application of statutory tests as set out in the Localism Act 2011

Main use of asset furthers social wellbeing or social interests of community

The legislation sets a broad and loose definition of ‘social wellbeing and social
interests’. The activities listed at paragraph 1.17 are sufficient to demonstrate
that a number of uses of the asset fall within the definition of ‘cultural,
recreational, and sporting interests’.



1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

2.1

Use of the asset to contribute to the social wellbeing and social interests of the
community may be considered the main rather than ancillary use because a
theatre by nature exists to provide for the cultural, recreational and sporting
interests of the community and it may be assumed the activities listed at
paragraph 1.17 are the main activities carried out on the premises.

There are no known plans to close the theatre and evidence of continued
demand and viability, which means it is realistic to think the main use of the
asset will continue to further social wellbeing and social interest of the
community.

Taken together, points 1.19-1.21 establish that criterion (i) of the statutory tests
set out in paragraph 1.7 above have been met. The main use of the building
does further the social wellbeing or social interests of the community and it is
realistic to expect that it will continue to do so.

The nomination is eligible

The Incognito Theatre Group has made its nomination as an established charity
(a status which qualifies to make nominations under the ACV Regulations.

The criteria also asks confirmation of the registered charity number, provided
as 1102558.

Criterion (i) of the statutory tests set out in paragraph 1.23 above has been met.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The nomination of the Incognito Theatre meets the statutory tests established
by the Localism Act 2011 to be considered an Asset of Community Value. The
recommendation is, therefore, that the Committee lists the Incognito Theatre as
an Asset of Community Value.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED



3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1
5.11

5.2

5.2.1

5.3
5.3.1

5.4
5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

The Community Leadership Committee could decide not to list the Incognito
Theatre as an ACV, but on balance it is judged that the nomination provides
sufficient evidence that the statutory criteria set out in the Localism Act 2011
have been met. If the Committee is in agreement with this judgment, the Council
must list the nominated asset as an ACV.

An owner has the right to appeal if they feel that their asset has been wrongly
listed.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

The Incognito Theatre will be recorded on the Register of Assets of Community
Value as an ACV. Both the nominating group and the owner of the property will
be informed, in writing, of the outcome.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

Corporate Priorities and Performance

The Community Right to Bid process contributes to the 2015-2020 Corporate
Plan’s objective to develop a new relationship with residents that enables them
to be independent and resilient and to take on greater responsibility for their
local areas by fulfilling one of the rights granted to local communities under the
Localism Act 2011.

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

The asset does belong to the Council and there are no financial implications to
this decision.

Social Value
There are no social value considerations as this decision does not relate to a
service contract.

Legal and Constitutional References

The Localism Act 2011 obligates the Council to list assets nominated by local
community groups as Assets of Community Value if these are deemed to
pass the statutory tests set out in the Act. The ACV regulations sets out the
procedure to be followed in assessing a nomination.

Under the Council’s Constitution (Article 7 Committees, Forums Working
Groups and Partnerships, section 7.5) the responsibilities of the Community
Leadership Committee include: To receive nominations and determine
applications for buildings/land to be listed as an Asset of Community Value
(Community Right to Bid).

When there is no scheduled meeting of the full Committee which falls within the
eight week statutory deadline for determining applications the Community
Leadership Sub-Committee receives the nominations and determines the



5.5
5.5.1

5.6
5.6.1

5.6.2

5.7
5.7.1

5.8
5.8.1

5.8.2

5.8
5.8.1

applications.

Risk Management
There are no risks associated with the decision to list the Incognito Theatre as
an ACV.

Equalities and Diversity
No negative differential impact on people with any characteristic protected
under the Equality Act 2010 has been identified with regard to this nomination.

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the council and all other
organisations exercising public functions must have due regard to the need to:

e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by or under the Act;

e advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity; race, religion or belief, and sex and sexual
orientation. The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of
equality into daily business and keep them under review in decision making; the
design of policies; and the delivery of services.

Corporate Parenting

As a Local Authority we have responsibility for the children in care and care
leavers within our borough. Corporate Parenting is about offering at least the
same standards of care as would a ‘reasonable parent’ and ensuring that the
decisions we make as a Council do not affect this cohort negatively. This report
does not provide any implications for Barnet’s children in care.

Consultation and Engagement

A draft amendment to the Council’s Community Right to Bid policy was carried
out between 11 February and 24 March 2014. The results of that consultation
were set out in a report taken to the Community Leadership Committee on 25
June 2014 and the Council’s guidance on the Community Right to Bid amended
following agreement of that report.

More specifically, the nominating group has been engaged in dialogue as part
of the process of administering the nomination, and given opportunities to
submit evidence to support their claim.

Insight
No specific insight data has been used to inform the decision required.

10



BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s15687/Community%20Right%20to

Community Right to Bid: Consultation and recent developments (Community
%20Bid%20Report.pdf.

Leadership Committee, 25 June 2014)

6.1

Appendix 1 — Supporting evidence

DRANNG No._|

{
f

H
i
]
)
3

Y

)
m
m

Clrvi [adlam,
HOLLY PARK FOAD, LOMDON N1t 3n | Execusve Divecior of Rapmucss.

al

| Loraden Bormagn of

!

&
i
| ]
|
|
'
L

I
=

_

|
[
[
B
|

|

DEMISE FLamM

MCOGNITO THEATRE,

Bl

ULEE

(2 N P 2 >

—
23911

[} @i 200
S S e

i

11


http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s15687/Community%20Right%20to%20Bid%20Report.pdf
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s15687/Community%20Right%20to%20Bid%20Report.pdf

Eoak How

AboutUs ~ Whats On v

Search...

incognito

A lidden gem bringing a splash of
curlture to Frierm Bamet ..

theatre

BoxOffice ~ FindUs  MailingList ~ ContactUs  Auditions v

Search this site =

Cffice page now
and book tickets.

Welcome to Incognito Theatre

Qur next show is We hope you enjoy finding out about us and our productions. B &

the The Game's

Afoot. Az a thestre group we started life in 1832 and since 1942 we have been
running our own well equipped 64 seat thestre in Friermn Bamet, Morth

Go to our Box London.

We have a friendly, lively and active membership of about 130 members and
stage @ p

Find Us On Facebeok

ayeartoa high standard.

Read more
We participate in the annual Bamet and District Drama Festival and have Be the first of your friends to
won many awards for our productions. like this
Book How -
Box Office

Cur neoct show is
the The Game's
Afoot.

Go to our Bax
Ciffice page now
and ook tickeis.

Read more

Join Dur Mailimg List

Do you want to hear sbout our
next show? Then subscribe to
our mailing list.

Become @ Member

Are you = budding actor? Are

you interested in lighiing, sound,

weardrobe, set building. stage
management or crewing
backsisge? Then why not come
and josn us? Visit our Contact
s page and send us an email
with your details.

'ou cam book tickets for our nesd =

n any ene of three ways: =

1 Omi-line: The most convenient way to book tickets is on-lime
via our TicketSource Website. After selecting your chasen
performance, you will be invited to choose your sests from
the seating plan. Pesyment is made by credit card and
includes a 10% booking fee.

2 Email- If you want to contact our Box Office Manager
directly. you can send an email to
ncognito. thesire. groupi@googlemsil.com with detsils of your
enguiry.

2  Phone: Lastly if you would rather spesak to the Bax Office
Manager directly abowt your ticket order you can csall the box
office on our dedicated number 0791 287 5700. Although
the phone is not manmned 24 hours a day, you can leave a
message and the Box Office Manager will returm your call as
=soon as they are sble to.

We usually sell out for all our performances so it is adwvisable to book early
and not to just turm up on the night - you will probably be disappointed!

Tickets are priced at £9 for non-members. £8 for members and £5 for
students.

Sunday performances start at 8pm, Saturday matinée performances start st
2pm and all other performances start at Sp. Doors open 30 minutes before
the performance starts.

Audience mennbers who have a hearing aid. can switch it fo the T-position to
tako= advantage of the suditorium's induction loop.

Latecomers can only be admitbed st a suitsble break in the performance.

Find Us On Facebook

Be the first of your friends to
like this

Browse the Incognite Archives

Do you like booking at old
photos? Then visit the Incognito
Thestre's Gallery and browse
photograghs from past

shows and ewvents.

12



Thank you for getting back to me.

| am also having trouble with the accountsfile - it seems to have become corrupt. | have asked fora
re-send and | will forwarditwhen | receive it.

| have scanned 15 programmes (Adsheetsthatfold to A5) from overthe last5 years or so, butwe
have been producingthese for 70 years. | hope these scans are sufficient evidence foryou.

Itisnot somethinglcan 'submit’, butl can referyouto the Theatre's web site which will tell you
more.

http://incognitotheatre.co.uk/

if you look at the 'more’' tab there isa lot about what we have done inthe past, including photo
galleries.

In terms of concessions we have tickets on sale at £9 for the general publicand these are discounted
by a poundto theatre club members, so they pay £8. As the prices are so reasonable and
deliberately affordable, we do not have additional concessions.

Holly Park Road, (behind Health Centre)
Friern Barnet, London, N11
www.incognitotheatre.com

About the play and author

What happens when a comfortable, | with Eileen Atkins and Corin Redgrave
middle-class, middle-aged marriage | leading the cast.

suddenly stalls? When shared values
and responsibilities no longer coalesce?

When the opportunity arises for one
life to be renewed, but at the expense
of another’s happiness and security?
And how does this impact on the rest
of the family?

A provocative drama that challenges
our notion of honour, our sense of
decency and our belief that love will
prevail, Honour received its British
premiere at the National Theatre in a
production directed by Roger Michell

Joanna Murray-Smith comes from
Melbourne, Australia, where most of
her plays have first been performed,
including Honour, Rapture, Redemp-
tion, Atlanta and Love Child, which was
then staged all over Australia. She has
also written short stories, a children’s
book and two novels, Truce and Judge-
ment Rock, both published by Penguin,
Australia. Honour marks her British
debut. She lives near Melbourne with her
husband and three children.

If you have any comments (good or bad) on this production or Incognito in general

then please email them to longstaff@waitrose.com or write to David Longstaff at

66 Hatley Close, Friern Barnet, London N11 3LN. All comments & suggestions are

gratefully received & will be discussed by the ITG committee.

Holly Park is a residential area, please try not to disturb
our neighbours when leaving the theatre. Thank you.

FORTHCOMING PRODUCTIONS

16th - 22nd July 2017

THRILLER OF THE YEAR
by Glyn Jones

Directed by Mike Nower

24th - 30th September 2017

THE ANNIVERSARY
by Bill Mcllwraith

Directed by Brian Moran

INCOGNITO THEATRE GROUP / Affiliated to the Barnet Borough Arts Council / Reg. Charity No.1000772
Patron: Sir David Jason 0.B.E. / Membership details from Ruth Nixon. Tel: 020 8886 3274

JOANNA MURRAY SMITH

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Putting the Community First BEE

LONDON BOROUGH

AGENDA ITEM

Community Leadership Committee
(23 May 2018)

Community Right to Bid: Northwest

Title Centre, Avion Crescent, NW9 5QY

Katie Mayers, Interim Assistant Director Communications and

Report of Strategy

Wards | Colindale

Status | Public

Yes

There is an 8 week statutory timescale to respond to
Community Right to Bid nominations, starting from the date
the Council receives the nomination. The nomination for the
Northwest Centre, Avion Crescent, NW9 5QY on 5" April
2018, making the deadline for a decision 315t May 2018.

Urgent

Key | No

Enclosures | Plan of nominated asset

Danusia Brzezicka, Strategy Officer, Community Participation

Officer Contact Details | - \sia brzezicka@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 3211)

2

Summary

The Localism Act 2011 introduced the Community Right to Bid (“CRTB”). Under section 87
of the Act the Council must maintain a list of land of community value in its area. A building
or other land is of community value if in the Council’s opinion there is an actual current use
of the building or other land, and it is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-
ancillary use of the building or other land which will further (whether or not in the same
way) the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community.

This is a new right for local people to nominate buildings or pieces of land that they believe
contribute to the social interests or wellbeing of their local communities to be listed on a
register of Assets of Community Value (“ACVs”), managed by the local authority.

Where land is listed as an ACV, if the owner subsequently wishes to make a ‘relevant

www.barnet.gov.uk



mailto:danusia.brzezicka@barnet.gov.uk

disposal’ (to sell the asset or grant a qualifying lease, which is one originally granted for a 25
year term) they must notify the local authority. This triggers an interim moratorium period of
six weeks, during which time the nominating group, or any other community group can
register interest in putting together a bid for the asset. If a community group registers interest,
this triggers a full moratorium period of six months, during which time the owner may not
make a relevant disposal of the asset, except to a community group. The moratorium is
intended to allow community groups the time to develop a proposal and raise the required
capital to bid for the asset when it comes onto the open market at the end of that period. The
owner is under no obligation to accept a bid from a community group and can sell the property
to whomever they wish once the six month moratorium is over. However, if the asset is not
disposed of within 18 months from the commencement of the interim moratorium period, then
the moratorium period is re-triggered (12 months from the end date of the first moratorium
period).

In order to decide whether to list an asset as an ACV, the Act provides that the Council must
consider whether the nomination has come from a group eligible to make a nomination, as
defined in the legislation; and whether the current or recent main use of the nominated asset
contributes to the social wellbeing or social interests (defined as ‘cultural, recreational or
sporting interests’) of the local community, and whether it is realistic to think it will continue
to do so in the next 5 years (whether or not the use remains exactly the same).

A nomination has been received to list the Northwest Centre, Avion Crescent, NW9 5QY
(Colindale ward) as an Asset of Community Value. This report recommends that the asset
is listed as an Asset of Community Value.

The nomination is an eligible nomination. The Localism Act 2011 and the Assets of
Community Value Regulations (“ACV Regulations”) provide that in order to be eligible, the
nomination must be made by a community organisation or group which qualifies under the
Act to make the nomination. The Trinity Church London, which nominated the Northwest
Centre, Avion Crescent, NW9 5QY, is a registered charity and qualifies as a community
group under regulation 5 (1) d of the ACV Regulations.

The nomination describes uses that further social interest, as it is used for numerous
community projects and events including an exam centre for excluded students from a Barnet
secondary school, a venue for a weekly autism group, food bank and homeless projects with
Homeless Action in Barnet. It is reasonable to think that the main use of this asset furthers
the social wellbeing and social interests of the community. There are currently no known
plans to close this community centre, and the nomination states it helps the vulnerable within
the local area, suggesting continued viability and demand. It is realistic to think that use
of the asset will continue to contribute to the social wellbeing and social interests of
the community.

Evidence was requested to verify the above mentioned activities and services and this had
been provided by the nominating group. The charity’s website presence also provided
evidence that community events were run and the services for vulnerable people — food bank
and debt support. The additional email evidence is appended to the report herein. Taken
together, it was deemed that there is sufficient evidence to meet the statutory requirements
as the main use of the asset contributes to the social interests or wellbeing of the local
community.

16



Recommendations

That the Committee agree that the Northwest Centre, should be listed as an Asset of
Community Value and added to the Council’s Register, based on the statutory criteria

set out in the Localism Act 2011, and the evidence provided in the nomination.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED
The Community Right to Bid

The Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”) introduced a new right for groups of local
people to nominate buildings or pieces of land which contribute to the ‘social
wellbeing or social interests’ of their local communities to be listed on a register
of Assets of Community Value (“ACVs”), which the local authority is required to
maintain.

Nominations can apply to public or private assets, although certain kinds of
asset (such as private homes) are exempt.

The Act provides that in order to decide whether to list a nominated asset as an
ACV, the Council must consider whether the main use of the asset contributes
to the social interests or wellbeing of the local community, and whether it is
realistic to think it will continue to do this (whether or not the use remains exactly
the same).

The Act defines social interests as ‘including cultural, recreational, and sporting
interests’. There is no further definition.

The Act provides that land in a local authority's area which is of community
value may be included by a local authority in its register of ACVs only:

(a) in response to a community nomination, or
(b) where permitted by regulations made by the appropriate authority.

In England a community nomination can be made by a parish council or by a
voluntary or community body with a local connection as defined in the Assets
of Community Value Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”).

The statutory tests which the Council must apply when assessing a nomination
are:

(i) Its main use furthers the social wellbeing or cultural, recreational or sporting
interests of the local community; and it is realistic to think that the main use will
continue to further the social wellbeing or cultural, recreational or sporting
interests of the local community; or,

(i) Where the main use does not currently have such a community benefit, in
the “recent past” it did have and the Council considers it likely that it would be
able to have such a use in the next 5 years.

17



1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

(iii) That the nomination is a community nomination made by a community or
voluntary organisation or group which qualifies under the Act to make the
nomination.

Where either criterion i) or ii), and criterion iii) of the above is met, the Council
must list the land or building on its register of Assets of Community Value.

If the Council lists the nominated land, a restriction is placed on the land if the
land is registered. If the owner wishes to sell the asset or to lease it for more
than 25 years, then the owner is legally obliged to notify the Council (if the asset
is not owned by the Council). The Council will then inform the nominating group
which signals an interim moratorium period of six weeks where the nominating
group or any other eligible community group may register an interest in bidding
for the asset. If during the six weeks a local community group expresses an
interest in taking on the asset and continuing its community use, then a full
moratorium is triggered and the sale is delayed for a six month period. This is
designed to give the community group the opportunity to raise funds to try to
purchase the asset at market value.

The owner is under no obligation to accept the community group’s bid over any
other bid. There is no ‘right of first refusal’ for the community group, only the
right to request the moratorium. The owner is free to work with other potential
buyers and stimulate the wider market during the moratorium and at the end of
the moratorium period can sell to any party. However, if the asset is not
disposed of within 18 months from the commencement of the interim
moratorium period, then the moratorium period is re-triggered (12 months from
the end date of the first moratorium period).

If an asset is listed as an ACV, the asset owner has the right to appeal against
this, initially through the Council’s internal review process and subsequently
through an appeal to the First Tier Tribunal.

If an asset is not listed, the Council must communicate its reasoning to the
nominating group but the nominating group has no right to appeal against the
decision.

Recent policy developments

The Government is currently reviewing the Right. The review is on-going and
there is no closing date as it is not a formal consultation. The Council has
contributed to the review as an interested party.

A Communities and Local Government Select Committee report published on
3 February 2015 recommended that the review of the Right should increase the
moratorium on sale or lease of an ACV to nine months, as well as creating
statutory obligations for ACV status to be considered as a material
consideration in planning matters. These recommendations have not yet been
accepted by the Government but will feed into the review.

18



1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

Nomination of the Northwest Centre

The Trinity Church London has nominated the Northwest Centre, Avion
Crescent, NW9 5QY. The enclosed plan sets out the boundaries of the
nominated asset.

The Northwest Centre is currently owned by Barnet Council and is leased to
the nominator. The landlord has been notified that this nomination is currently
under consideration.

The nominating group considers that the main current use of the land furthers
social wellbeing and interests of the community on the grounds that:

The Northwest Centre is a multifunctional community space managed by Trinity
Church that facilitates many groups and local service providers in the area.
The Northwest Centre has hosted: Barnet Refugee Service, Resources for
Autism, Trinity Church, Colindale Foodbank & Christian Against Poverty (CAP).
The Northwest Centre also allows for the running of a CAP (Christians Against
Poverty) debt centre which provides vital support to those struggling with debt
large or small. The CAP team understands the stress of life when in debt and
can provide the vital support and help to get debtor’s life back on track.

A further activity from the Centre is a Foodbank overseen by the Trussell Trust,
which is open on Tuesdays and Thursdays between 12.00 and 14.30,
distributing food to local people in need.

The Northwest Centre runs a programme for children and young people's
activities.

Any community projects that is run from the Northwest Centre in partnership
with other community groups are entirely self-funded.

In summary, it is the social centre of the local community, Colindale and the
surrounding area and is open to the public regardless of religion, ethnic group,
social status, political belief, gender or age.

There are no known plans to close this centre.
Application of statutory tests as set out in the Localism Act 2011

Main use of asset furthers social wellbeing or social interests of community

The legislation sets a broad and loose definition of ‘social wellbeing and social
interests’. The activities listed at paragraph 1.17 are sufficient to demonstrate
that a number of uses of the asset fall within the definition of ‘cultural,
recreational, and sporting interests’.

Use of the asset to contribute to the social wellbeing and social interests of the
community may be considered the main rather than ancillary use because a
community centre by nature exists to provide for the cultural, recreational and
sporting interests of the community and it may be assumed the activities listed
at paragraph 1.17 are the main activities carried out on the premises.

19



1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

2.1

There are no known plans to close the community centre and evidence of
continued demand and viability, which means it is realistic to think the main use
of the asset will continue to further social wellbeing and social interest of the
community.

Taken together, points 1.19-1.21 establish that criterion (i) of the statutory tests
set out in paragraph 1.7 above have been met. The main use of the land does
further the social wellbeing or social interests of the community and it is realistic
to expect that it will continue to do so.

The nomination is eligible

Trinity Church London has made its nomination as a registered charity (a status
which qualifies to make nominations under the ACV Regulations.
and the Act).

The nomination provides a number of examples of how the local community are
involved in numerous activities at Northwest Centre, evidencing a strong local
connection.

Criterion (i) of the statutory tests set out in paragraph 1.23 above has been met.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The nomination of the Northwest Centre meets the statutory tests established
by the Localism Act 2011 to be considered an Asset of Community Value. The
recommendation is, therefore, that the Committee lists the Northwest Centre as
an Asset of Community Value.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

20



3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1
5.11

5.2

5.2.1

5.3
5.3.1

5.4
5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

The Community Leadership Committee could decide not to list the Northwest
Centre as an ACV, but on balance it is judged that the nomination provides
sufficient evidence that the statutory criteria set out in the Localism Act 2011
have been met. If the Committee is in agreement with this judgment, the Council
must list the nominated asset as an ACV.

An owner has the right to appeal if they feel that their asset has been wrongly
listed.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

The Northwest Centre will be recorded on the Register of Assets of Community
Value as an ACV. Both the nominating group and the owner of the property will
be informed, in writing, of the outcome.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

Corporate Priorities and Performance

The Community Right to Bid process contributes to the 2015-2020 Corporate
Plan’s objective to develop a new relationship with residents that enables them
to be independent and resilient and to take on greater responsibility for their
local areas by fulfilling one of the rights granted to local communities under the
Localism Act 2011.

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

The asset does not belong to the Council and there are no financial implications
to this decision.

Social Value
There are no social value considerations as this decision does not relate to a
service contract.

Legal and Constitutional References

The Localism Act 2011 obligates the Council to list assets nominated by local
community groups as Assets of Community Value if these are deemed to
pass the statutory tests set out in the Act. The ACV regulations sets out the
procedure to be followed in assessing a nomination.

Under the Council’'s Constitution (Article 7 Committees, Forums Working
Groups and Partnerships, section 7.5) the responsibilities of the Community
Leadership Committee include:

To receive nominations and determine applications for buildings/land to be
listed as an Asset of Community Value (Community Right to Bid).

When there is no scheduled meeting of the full Committee which falls within the
eight week statutory deadline for determining applications the Community
Leadership Sub-Committee receives the nominations and determines the



5.5
5.5.1

5.6
5.6.1

5.6.2

5.7
5.7.1

5.8
5.8.1

5.8.2

5.8
5.8.1

applications.

Risk Management
There are no risks associated with the decision to list the Northwest Centre as
an ACV.

Equalities and Diversity
No negative differential impact on people with any characteristic protected
under the Equality Act 2010 has been identified with regard to this nomination.

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the council and all other
organisations exercising public functions must have due regard to the need to:

e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by or under the Act;

e advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity; race, religion or belief, and sex and sexual
orientation. The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of
equality into daily business and keep them under review in decision making; the
design of policies; and the delivery of services.

Corporate Parenting

As a Local Authority we have responsibility for the children in care and care
leavers within our borough. Corporate Parenting is about offering at least the
same standards of care as would a ‘reasonable parent’ and ensuring that the
decisions we make as a Council do not affect this cohort negatively. This report
does not provide any implications for Barnet’s children in care.

Consultation and Engagement

A draft amendment to the Council’s Community Right to Bid policy was carried
out between 11 February and 24 March 2014. The results of that consultation
were set out in a report taken to the Community Leadership Committee on 25
June 2014 and the Council’s guidance on the Community Right to Bid amended
following agreement of that report.

More specifically, the nominating group has been engaged in dialogue as part
of the process of administering the nomination, and given opportunities to
submit evidence to support their claim.

Insight
No specific insight data has been used to inform the decision required.

22



6.1

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Community Right to Bid: Consultation and recent developments (Community
Leadership Committee, 25 June 2014)
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s15687/Community%20Right%20to

%20Bid%20Report.pdf.

Appendix 1 — Supporting evidence

Evidence of the Northwest Centre being used as a community by the church for church
activities can be found on https://trinitylondon.org.  This is current and ongoing usage.
The Trussell Trust Colindale Foodbank operates from the Northwest Centre and is open
every Tuesday and Thursday. See their website https://colindale.foodbank.org.uk/ This is
current and ongoing usage.

The CAP Debt Centre also operates from the Northwest Centre.  This is current and
ongoing usage.

A CAP Release Group — dealing with issues of addiction also meets at the Northwest Centre.
Evidence of both of these CAP projects can be found on the central CAP website
https://capuk.org and searching for services in the Colindale area (or using NW9 5QY as a
search). This is current and ongoing usage.

Barnet Refugee Service use the Northwest Centre for a number of different projects — one
example can be found here http://www.b-r-s.org.uk/our-services/youth-activities/ The BRS
projects are often short term so not posted online. BRS use of the Centre is not
continuous, but ad hoc as they need to run different courses. A driving theory course for
refugees is just about to start.

Resources for Autism have run a weekly youth group at the Centre for a number of years.
The RfA website is https://resourcesforautism.org.uk/ although this does not mention the
Northwest Centre as one of their venues.

There are also ad hoc groups, not connected to the church such as a Chinese Cultural Group
that use the building every week — but unsure how to provide evidence for this — could you
advise please?

Other events such as our Community Bonfire and Firework party were all run with online
advertising and ticket booking — but these are date specific and no longer viewable online.
Would other evidence, such as photographs of the event / or screenshots of number of
tickets booked be acceptable evidence?

Evidence of Community engagement can be seen here.
http://www.trinitylondon.org/about/community-work

Evidence of the broad range of church community calendar be seen here.
http://www.trinitylondon.org/events

23


http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s15687/Community%20Right%20to%20Bid%20Report.pdf
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s15687/Community%20Right%20to%20Bid%20Report.pdf
http://webdefence.global.blackspider.com/urlwrap/?q=AXicFcoxDsIwDAXQLzFyF5dQwcCEoBMMlXqD0qAkIomR4xblaGys3Arx5ocV7BeoH0BiNcZSkYXSGOLEWYUjTZzwavuL766njdntty3OnNKcg1YagvNajrdR8l3J8ULzA171WQ5NoxL-KXK2nInFAVi_gR-iOSZG&Z
https://colindale.foodbank.org.uk/
https://capuk.org/
http://webdefence.global.blackspider.com/urlwrap/?q=AXicDcgxDsIwDABAS4y8pQ6lgoEJUSYYkPhBm1aNRVMjx0mUp7Gx8is63sEGhh9A-QLIXOp6wCAJfUez5UWFZ7TsITePm7veL7v6cNw30LL3cSEt-KTJaTj3nSyj4sQJ4wuc6vtkTM4Z-0qqgCzT-objilES2TGYwlFd1VmlREprAMD2A_AHp6Ewhw&Z
https://resourcesforautism.org.uk/
http://webdefence.global.blackspider.com/urlwrap/?q=AXicNcyxCsIwEAbgHxx9Fi_WooOTqJMOgm_QNpKGJjm5Xhr6aG6uvpU4uH98WMB-gPkNSJirytIoE8XGh46TCgfqOKLUt0t_vh7X1Xa3qXHiGHPyOtPdu17HQ9tIeig5nigP6FWfe2NKKaTify5wspyIxZmm5aym-w-rwjIAWL6AL9gyL7Q&Z
http://webdefence.global.blackspider.com/urlwrap/?q=AXicFcoxDsIwDAXQLzFyF4dQwcCEoBMMSNygtFUSkdgocRv1aGys3Arx5ocVhi-wfIAcF2sHKnmm1IXYC2uWSL0k1OZ28e31tLG7_bbBWVKaOOhC9-C8luOjyzwqOZlpesKrvg7G1FpJc_i_KDwIk2RnxnlkLQDWb-AHRmwqKg&Z

+

HM Land Registry e number NL104052

e T Ordnance Survey map reference TQ2190NE
QfﬁCIal Copg OF Scale 1:2500 reduced from 1:1250
title p'an Administrative area Barnet

M 7' ©Crown copyright and database rignts 2016 Ordnance Survey 100026316,
‘You are not permitted 1o copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.
[ ' S G (i
~

i~ .

24



COLINDALE FOODBANK

Foodbank (Trussell Trust):

Thirteen million people live below the poverty line in the UK, with individuals going hungry every day for a
range of reasons, from benefit delays to receiving an unexpected bill on a low income. The Trussell Trust's
400-strong network of foodbanks prowvides a minimum of three days’ emergency food and support to people
experiencing crisis in the UK. In 2015/16, we gave 1,109,309 three day emergency food supplies to people in

Crisis.

The Foodbank is open between 12-2:30pm every Tuesday and Thursday at The Centre.

Catalyst Festiva

]

Booking Details

25



The Centre

The Centre is a multifunctional community space managed by Trinity Church that facilitates many groups and
local service prowiders in the area. The Centre is ideal for up to 70 guests for conferences, workshops, classes
and parties. The Centre facilities comprise of one main hall, a kitchen and toilets. The Centre is available to

rent and to make a book enguiry please contact us.

We have hosted: Barnet Refugee Service, Resources for Autism, Trinity Church, Colindale Foodbank &
Christian Against Poverty (CAP).

CAP (Christians Against Poverty)

Qur CAP debt centre provides vital support to those struggling with debt large or small. The CAP team know
and understand the stress of life when you are stuck in debt and they are available to prowvide the vital support

and help you need to get your life back on track.

To book an appointment please contact us on 0800 328 0006.

Community events for Bamet
Children.

The MNorthwest Centre also has been a base from which many Community
projects in Grahame Park, have been organised including;

Community Days...

26



	Agenda
	1 Community Right to Bid: Incognito Theatre, Holly Park Road, N11 3HB
	2 Community Right to Bid: Northwest Centre, Avion Crescent, NW9 5QY

